#### No.MCI-4(3)/2016-Med./

#### MEDICAL COUNCIL OF INDIA

#### POSTGRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 30.06.2017 at 10:30 A.M. in the Office of the Medical Council of India, Pocket-14, Sector-8, Dwarka, New Delhi.

#### Present:

1.	Dr. S.B. Siwach	Chairman,	
		Former Director, Pandit B D Sharma PGI,	
		Rohtak, Haryana	
2.	Dr. Bhanu Prakash Dubey	Dean,	
		L N Medical College,	
		Bhopal	
3.	Dr. Dhruba Jyoti Borah	Principal-cum-Chief Suptd.,	
		Jorhat Medical College & Hospital,	
		Jorhat (Assam).	
4.	Dr. Vora Nitin Sumanchandra	Dean,	
		GMERS Medical College Sola, Near New	
		Gujarat High Court, Sola, S.G. Highway,	
		Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380061	

Dr. Reena Nayyar - Secretary I/c

The Chairman welcomed the members of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

Leave of absence was received from Dr. Datteswar Hota, Dr. Deelip Govindrao Mhaisekar, Dr. K S Sharma, Dr. (Mrs.) Rani Bhaskaran & Dr. Raja Babu Panwar, Members, Postgraduate Medical Education Committee.

### 1. Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee – confirmation of.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee confirmed the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 23.06.2017.

### 2. <u>Minutes of the last meeting of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee</u> – action taken thereon.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee noted the Action Taken Report on the minutes of the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee meeting held on 23.06.2017

### 3. <u>Approval of the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee</u> meeting held on 08/05/2017 – regarding.

Read: the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 08/05/2017.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 08/05/2017 and decision item wise as under:-

### 1. Admission of PG students at Madras Medical College, Chennai for the Academic Year 2015-16 - Regarding

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted that there is vast difference in the sanctioned intake capacity as shown on the agenda note and as claimed by the college authority. The committee also perused the response dated 04.09.2015 of the college authority where in it is stated that these courses are being conducted with the same annual intake from the 1980. It is also stated that these courses were started with affiliation with University of Madras which was subsequently transferred to Tamil Nadu Dr. MGR Medical University when it came in to existence in 1988. The college has also requested that these courses have been conducted in Madras Medical College which is an Institution of 180 years from more than three or four decades and regularize their recognition. The institute has also expressed it's willingness to procedurally go through any process. In view of the above, the Sub-Committee recommends that

- a) PG section to place on record the documents by which the intake capacity as shown on MCI's Website / agenda note has been determined.
- b) Meanwhile, the admission made by the Madras Medical College be accepted.
- c) As clause 6 of the Postgraduate Medical Education regulation provide for renewal of recognition, therefore the process as laid down be followed by the college and thereafter the intake capacity be fixed. The Monitoring Sub-Committee recalled that in similarly situated cases such as Rajendra Institute of Medical Sciences, Ranchi the PG Committee had on 30.03.2016 approved the procedure for renewal of recognition for such cases.

Regarding the three students namely Dr. Varindar Pal Singh Thakur, Dr. Kannan. A & Dr. Yazhini. M wherein, percentage is less than 50% in respect of first candidate while for second and third no marks have been provided even after 04 reminders, hence the Institute be asked to furnish reply in this regard within one week failing which the candidate under reference should be discharged.

(a), (b), (c) approved.

Regarding the three students namely Dr. Varindar Pal Singh Thakur, Dr. Kannan. A & Dr. Yazhini. M wherein, percentage is less than 50% in respect of first candidate while for second and third no marks have been provided even after 04 reminders, Discharge Notice be issued as enough opportunities have been provided to the Institute to submit the requisite information. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be also sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

### 2. Admission of Postgraduate (Super-Specialties) students at Medical College, Thiruvananthapuram for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted the explanation furnished by the college authority vide letter dated 29.12.2016 in respect of M.Ch – Plastic and reconstruct Surgery. The committee also noted that the said course as per MCI's website record is recognized. Hence the sanctioned intake capacity cannot be "0" zero in respect of this course. Thus the explanation offered by the college that it has the

sanctioned intake capacity in two seats for this course be accepted. In view of the above, the Sub- Committee recommends that

- a) PG section to place on record the documents by which the intake capacity as shown on MCI's Website / agenda note has been determined.
- b) Meanwhile, the admission made by the Medical College, Thiruvananthapuram be accepted.
- c) As clause 6 of the Postgraduate Medical Education regulation provide for renewal of recognition, therefore the process as laid down be followed by the college and thereafter the intake capacity be fixed. The Monitoring Sub-Committee recalled that in similarly situated cases such as Rajendra Institute of Medical Sciences, Ranchi the PG Committee had on 30.03.2016 approved the procedure for renewal of recognition for such cases.

Approved.

### 3. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Patna Medical College, Patna for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

On perusal of letter dated 09.01.2017, 27.01.2017 & 18.03.2017 the MSC noted that the renewal of recognition process has already been initiated by the college. Therefore the admission made by the college be accepted and the process of renewal of recognition be timely completed to fix the intake for all these courses.

Approved.

### 4. Admission of Postgraduate Super-specialties students at Narayana Medical College, Nellore for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding

Monitoring Sub-committee has found explanation of the college in order.

Approved.

5. Admission of PG students (Super-speciality) at Vydehi Institute of Medical Sciences & Research Centre, Bangalore Year2015-16- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has found explanation of the college in order.

Approved.

### 6. Admission of PG students at PSG Institute of Medical Sciences, Coimbatore for the Academic Year 2015-16 - Regarding.

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted its observation in the meeting held on 2.11.2015 regarding seeking clarification from State Govt. regarding seat sharing. The Committee recalled that in its meeting held on 24/3/2017 the Committee had accepted the opinion of Council Advocate that the provision relating to seat sharing in PGMER between non-Governmental Institute and State Govt. cannot be enforced until the Hon'ble Supreme Court decides the SLP filed by the Council in St. Johns Medical College matter. The Committee also recalled that the General body of the Council in its meeting held on 28.3.2017 has approved the amendment to Regulation 9 of PGMER whereby the provisions providing for seat sharing has been omitted. Therefore, it would be appropriate to accept the explanation furnished by the college authority vide their letter dated 05.09.2015.

### 7. Admission of PG students at Thanjavur Medical College, Thanjavur for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted that the Institution is not responding 27.08.2015 and 04.04.2016 regarding the three excess admissions in MS – General Surgery. The erstwhile Broad of Governor vide their decision dated 21.09.2013 decided to recommend to the MOHFW to reduce intake of recognize MS-Surgery seats from 14 to 11. The committee called for the file for admission made in 2016-17 and it was observed that the college has admitted only 08 students in MS –(General Surgery) course. From the available records it is not clear as to why the college has reduced the admission from its claim of 14 seats to 08 seats in 2016-17. A communication may be made to the college seeking explanation from the college from 2014 onwards, with copy endorsed to State Govt., DME and affiliating University.

Approved.

### 8. Admission of Postgraduate Super-specialties students at Meenakshi Medical College and Research Institute, Enathur for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

Monitoring Committee has observed that no further action is required to be taken as no candidate is admitted in the said course in 2015-2016.

Approved.

### 9. Admission of PG Super-specialties students at Coimbatore Medical College, Coimbatore for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that The State Govt. should also be informed that in accordance with judgment of the Hon'ble Supreme Court in Preeti Srivastava's case reservation in Super Specialty courses is not permissible. Accordingly the State Govt. be directed to ensure that its rules are in conformity with the judgments of Hon'ble Supreme Court and with the MCI regulation.

Approved.

#### 10. Clarification regarding PG admission under PH category.

Item be deferred and document in respect of physical fitness of the candidate including certifications of disability by the competent authority be obtained and the matter be placed for consideration for next meeting.

Noted.

### 11. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Kamineni Institute of Medical Sciences, Narketpally Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

### 12. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at S V S Medical College, Mehboobnagar Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 13. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Maulana Azad Medical College, New Delhi Year2016-17- Regarding.

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted the explanation submitted by the college authorities vide there letter dated 17/3/2017 the explanation state that they have been making admission in MD (DVL) and DDVL since 1970-71. They have no record in this respect.

Concerning recognition of MD Radio Therapy) recognition they state that such recognition have been recommended by the Council in 1993. They have been admitting two students in the said course since 2015-16. As per the online entries made by the college on MCI portal following three candidate are shown to be admitted in MD (Radio therapy ) course (1) Dr. Malvika Gulati (2) Dr. Rahul Anand & (3) Dr. Manish Dutt. The college should be asked which are the two students that they had admitted MD (Radiotherapy) and incase third admission is made, the lowest in merit be discharged immediately.

For MD (DVL) and DDVL Renewal of recognition procedure should be followed.

Approved.

Regarding excess admission in M.D. (Radiotherapy), Issue Discharge Notice in respect of candidate lowest in merit. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be also sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

### 14. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Santosh Medical College Ghaziabad for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 15. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Gujarat Adani Institute of Medical Sciences, Bhuj for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 16. Admission of PG students (Broad-Speciality) at Government Medical College, Bhavnagar Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

### 17. <u>Admission of PG students Broad-speciality) at Mahadevappa Rampure Medical College, Gulbarga Year 2016-17- Regarding.</u>

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 18. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at K V G Medical College, Sullia Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 19. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Father Mullers Institute of Medical Education & Research, Mangalore Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 20. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Vijaynagar Institute of Medical Sciences, Bellary Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 21. Admission of PG students (Super-specialties) at K S Hegde Medical Academy, Mangalore for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

#### 22. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical</u> College, Belgaum Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

Approved.

### 23. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Bombay Hospital Institution of Medical Sciences, Mumbai Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order.

## 24. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) Dr. Panjabrao Alias Bhausaheb Deshmukh Memorial Medical College, Amravati for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

The Monitoring Sub-Committee noted that the college has submitted in its letter dated 02/02/2017 regarding admission of Dr. Sameer Gupta was made on NRI seats, and it is stated in the letter that approval of Admission Regulating Authority is required. The college may be asked to furnish the copy of approval by Admission Regulating Authority for Dr. Sameer Gupta's admission within 07 days.

Not Approved. Discharge Notice be issued as enough opportunities have been provided to the Institute to submit the requisite information. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be also sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

### 25. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Dr. Ulhas Patil Medical College & Hospital, Jalgaon Year2016-17- Regarding

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that the explanation of Institute is in order

Approved.

### 26. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at ACPM Medical College, Dhule for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Item deferred by Monitoring Sub-committee.

All subsequent items from <u>26 to 45 have been deferred</u> by the PG Monitoring Sub-Committee.

Noted.

### 4. Admission of PG students at BRD Medical College, Gorakhpur for the Academic Year 2014-15 – regarding.

Read: the matter with regard to admission of PG students at BRD Medical College, Gorakhpur for the academic year 2014-15 along with the opinion of the Law Officer.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to admission of PG students at BRD Medical College, Gorakhpur for the academic year 2014-15 along with the opinion of the Law Officer.

Matter pertains to admissions in PG courses in 2014 in excess as per MCI website. Institute has stated that admissions are done by the Admissions Authority after seats were increased by U.P. Govt. in 2007. In this regard, legal opinion is taken. The operative part of the opinion is to follow the procedure adopted by MCI in case of such admissions in M.P.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee perused the entire issue alongwith the legal opinion of the Law Officer and noted that:

There are a number of very old medical colleges in the country who are admitting students in P.G. Diploma / Degree courses but the number of students they are admitting does not tally with the number shown in MCI records/website. However, they have been making these admissions since long (before section 10A of the Indian Medical Council Act came into existence). There has been objections in their recognition as well as pointing out by Monitoring Cell that excess admissions has been made by the Institutes. Similar matters was discussed in a meeting in the Ministry of Heath held on 10.04.2013 and it was decided that in the interest of large number of students who have passed out from these colleges, the MCI should arrange fresh assessment of theses colleges (under the provision continuation of recognition) and fix up the number of seats (depending upon the available faculty and infrastructure) in each course for future admissions. However, this process (although started) have not been completed by now.

The P.G. Committee decided that Dr. Arti Sharma, Deputy Secretary, PG Section should monitor this process (including identification of colleges/courses, arranging their assessment (even without examination since they are very old government medical colleges and their examinations already stand inspected) including BRD Medical College, Gorakhpur and bringing the reports before P.G. Committee for fixing the number of seats in each course at the earliest for future admissions).

It will be binding on the colleges to follow the number of eats fixed in each course in future. If they make any admissions in excess of that, they will be illegal and not according to regulations.

### 5. Admission of PG students (Broad Speciality) at Government Medical College, Chandigarh for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Read: the matter with regard to admission of PG students (Broad Speciality) at Government Medical College, Chandigarh for the academic year 2016-17 along with the order dated 08/07/2016 passed by the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court at Chandigarh in LPA No. 1074 and 1075.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to admission of PG students (Broad Speciality) at Government Medical College, Chandigarh for the academic year 2016-17 along with the order dated 08/07/2016 passed by the Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court at Chandigarh in LPA No. 1074 and 1075 and noted that the matter pertains to admission of PG students after cut-off date which as per Institute is in pursuant to orders of Hon'ble High Court from time to time.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee after detailed deliberation in the matter decided that legal opinion be obtained from the Council Advocate and after receiving the legal opinion, the matter be placed before the PG Committee.

# 6. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Radio-Diagnosis) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Interventional Radiological procedures like DSA, CT guided FNAC, USG guided FNAC are minimal.
- 2. Workload of CT guided FNAC/Biopsy was only 86 & that of DSA only 149 in 2016.
- 3. Space for faculty is inadequate.
- 4. Biometric attendance was not provided.
- 5. No proper seminar, teaching class rooms in the department.
- 6. Most of the research publications are done in their own college magazine, not in indexed journals.
- 7. From the last 3 years the CT guided Biopsy/FNAC and Ultrasound guided FNAC/Aspirations etc. are as below:-

	2014	2015	2016
CT guided /FNAC	62	73	86
Ultrasound guide FNAC	364	391	413

This means 0.3 CT guided/FNAC and 1 ultrasound guide FNAC per day, which is very inadequate.

- 8. Academic parameters during the last 12 months were: case presentations 17, journals clubs 16, group discussions 12. These are very inadequate.
- 9. There is no faculty table attached without which the eligibility of various faculty members cannot be decided.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD(Radio-Diagnosis) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

7. Increase of seats in MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Promotion of Dr. N.S. Karodpati, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.01.2014 after the cut of date. He has only 2 publications against the requirement of 4. In the remaining 2, one is case report and in second he is not first or second author.
- 2. Dr. Rashmi Prashant, Asst.Prof. was absent on the day of assessment.
- 3. There was nil Major Operation & NIL Daycare Operation on day of assessment.
- 4. Total number of Audiometry cases has decreased from 3,019 in 2014 to 2,691 in 2016.
- 5. Total number of Impedance has decreased from 1,121 in 2014 to 818 in 2016.
- 6. Speech & Voice Analysis services are not available.
- 7. Investigative facilities like Nerve Conduction, EMG are not available in the department.
- 8. Equipment like Nerve Stimulator / Monitor, High Definition Digital Camera with Recording System are not available.

- 9. The department does not participate in National Programme for Prevention & Control of Deafness.
- 10. During the last 3 years day care operation were nil.
- 11. Number of patients admitted in 2016 was (IPD 2946) Major + Minor Operations (excluding day care operations) were 3428. This is not feasible, obviously data is non-genuine.
- 12. Academic parameters during the last 12 months Group Discussion only 11, which is inadequate.
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

8. <u>Starting of MD (Forensic Medicine) course at Stanley Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Forensic Medicine) course at Stanley Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Starting of MD (Forensic Medicine) course at Stanley Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 restricting the number of admissions to **3(Three)** students per year, till the first batch admitted appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

9. Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Dr. Ajit Swamy; Dr. Rahul Salunkhe; Dr. Tushar Agarwal; Dr. Prafulla Herode, all Professors and Dr. Abhijeet Shroff, Asso. Prof. are promoted on basis of publications but their publications are in general Medical & Healthcare journals or in the Institution's own journal.
- 2. Dr. Sanjay S Deo, Professor, was not available on the day of assessment.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Prafulla Herode, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.08.2016 after the cut off date. He has only 3 publications against the required 4. In the 4<sup>th</sup> publication quoted, he is not 1<sup>st</sup> nor 2<sup>nd</sup> author.

- 4. Dr. Satish Uchale, Sr. Resident, is DNB from non-teaching hospital. He has no 3 years experience as Jr. Resident in a medical college. Hence, not eligible.
- 5. Out of 33 publications, there is only 1 publication in Orthopaedic Specialty journal. Rest are in general Medical & Healthcare journals or in the Institution's own journal.
- 6. Space for faculty is inadequate.
- 7. No daycare operations during the last 3 years.
- 8. On assessment day (same day) radiological investigations from the reports of Radio Diagnosis & Orthopaedics mismatch as under:-

	Orthopaedics	Radio Diagnosis
MRI	76	58
CT	46	62
USG	325	297
Plain x-rays	354	509
IVP/Barium etc.	14	28
Mammography	14	18
DSA	05	1
CT guided FNA	C30	2
USG guided	37	4

This obviously indicate that data is non-genuine.

- 9. Data of death during the last year was 7 out of 8835 admissions, which means 0.08 per day in a department which deals with Poly Trauma.
- 10. Speciality clinics:- No separate area provided for speciality clinics. It is run from 2 pm to 4 pm in the Orthopaedics OPD, along with other cases.
- 11. Departmental library: There is no separate space for deptt. library. The books are kept in the seminar room used for PT teaching. The latest journals available in the deptt. library is August 2015.
- 12. Office Space: 1 room for HOD, only 2 rooms for 5 Professors, Only 1 room for 3 Assoc.Profs., only 1 room for 8 Asst.Prof. and no separate room for Jr. Residents (19 JR).
- 13. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

# 10. <u>Starting of MD (Dermatology, Venereology & Leprosy) course at Government Medical College, Miraj, Sangli, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Dermatology, Venereology & Leprosy) course at Government Medical College, Miraj, Sangli, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Shekhar N Pradhan, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 12.10.2015 after the cut off date. All his publications quoted are after his promotion, which cannot be considered.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Umesh Y. Bhoi, Assoc. Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 16.09.2014 after the cut off date. Both his publications are after his promotion and cannot be considered.

- 3. Equipment like LASER for Scar Revision, Patch Testing Kit are not available.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Dermatology, Venereology & Leprosy) course at Government Medical College, Miraj, Sangli, Maharasthra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

11. Increase of seats in MD (DVL) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (DVL) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (14/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Workload of the following procedures is inadequate:
  - (a) LASER for Scar Revision: NIL;
  - (b) Skin Grafting Procedures: 15 in 2016;
  - (c) Nail Surgeries: 21 in 2016;
  - (d) LASER for Pigment Removal: 48;
  - (e) Skin Biopsies: 71 in 2016.
- 2. Attendance at Specialty clinics like Hansen's Disease clinic, Autoimmune Diseases clinic is low average 3/clinic.
- 3. There are 2 units with 30 beds each and there are already 6 seats commensurate with available infrastructure.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (DVL) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

12. <u>Starting of MD(Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Nizam's Institute of Medical Sciences, Hyderabad under NIMS Deemed University, Telangana U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (15/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Nizam's Institute of Medical Sciences, Hyderabad under NIMS Deemed University, Telangana U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Promotion of Dr. B. Shanthi, Professor, is not as per regulations. She was Asstt.Prof. in Pathology for 4 years 3 months and Assoc.Prof. 3 years 6 months and promoted on 05.04.2016. She has no publication.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Sudhir K. Vujhini, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was Asst.Prof. for 1 year 4 months and promoted Assoc.Prof. on 07.06.2016 after the cut off date. He has no publications.
- 3. There is no Tutor in the Department.
- 4. All the faculty have qualification of M.D. (Pathology) & not of IHBT. There is no evidence of having received training of 2 y in IHBT as shown in the faculty table. They have been posted on the same respective designation in IHBT which they were holding in Pathology on date of transfer.
- 5. Details of Tutor/Senior Resident are not provided in the faculty table.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Nizam's Institute of Medical Sciences, Hyderabad under NIMS Deemed University, Telangana u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

13. <u>Starting of MD(Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (08/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (08/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. All the faculty have qualification of M.D. (Pathology) & not of IHBT. There is no evidence of having received training of 2 y in IHBT as shown in the faculty table. They have been posted on the same respective designation in IHBT which they were holding in Pathology on date of transfer.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. B. Bheeshma, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 04.08.2016 in OMC (not Narayana), after cut-off date; he has no publication. He is not shown last working at Nellore.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. B.S. Nityananda, Assoc. Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 04.08.2016. He has no publication.
- 4. Apheresis Unit is not available.
- 5. Books & Journals in Central & Departmental Library are inadequate.
- 6. In the column of "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents", it is stated "State Government Institution" implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend to Residents @ rates of State Govt.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Immuno Haematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

## 14. Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (13/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (13/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1.
- 2. There is no Senior Resident.
- 3. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 4. OPD attendance on day of assessment is only 40. Average attendance is 42.
- 5. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 33 %. Average Bed Occupancy is 40 %.
- 6. Facilities for Intra-Operative Radiotherapy are not available.
- 7. Departmental Library has only 29 books.
- 8. Total number of patients admitted last year (IPD) 183 only and only 1 death. It means less than 1 admission per day which is inadequate.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

## 15. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (15/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (15/06/2017) and noted the following:

1. Promotion of the following faculty is not as per regulations:-

	Name	Designation	Date of Promotion
(i)	Dr. Seema Sankar;	Professor	15.05.2014
(ii)	Dr. Geetha Francis	Assoc.Prof.	01.10.2015
(iii)	Dr. Jyothi Idiculla	Professor	15.05.2014
(iv)	Dr. Soumya Umesh	Assoc.Prof.	01.10.2015
(v)	Dr. Betsy Mathew	Professor	01.01.2014

They have been promoted after the cut of date without any required publication.

- 2. There is no Senior Resident in Unit 1.
- 3. SAF has been altered. ICU and ICCU column has been deleted and their data have not been provided
- 4. In the Central Library, there are only 2 Indian journals and 2 foreign journals in the medicine department which is very inadequate.

- 5. Total number of admitted patients has decreased from 11,913 to 10,842 during preceding 3 year period.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

## 16. Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (14/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Chitra Dinakar, Professor, is not as per regulations. She was Asst.Prof. for 3 years 10 months and promoted on 01.10.2015 after the cut off date. Her promotion is not as per regulations even with publications. She is DNB.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Indumathi C K, Professor, is not as per regulations. She was Asst.Prof. for 3 years 10 months and promoted Professor on 01.10.2015 after the cutoff date. Her promotion is not as per regulations even with publication.
- 3. Dr. Maria Loretta Lewin, Assoc.Prof., Dr. Ranjini Srinivasan, Asst.Prof., Dr. Sushma K, Asst.Prof. & Dr. Poornima R N, Ast.Prof. are DNB from non-teaching hospital. None of them have 3 years experience as Jr. Resident in a medical college when appointed as Sr. Resident and then Asst.Prof. Hence, they are not eligible.
- 4. Dr. Shruthi Basvaraj M, Dr. Anand M, Dr. Ruch Amalraj, Dr. Saurav, Dr. Sumithra, Dr. Anjan Kumar TK, Dr. Prakash Vemanna J, & Dr. Narahari Kishore Kumar, all Sr. Residents are DNB from non-teaching hospital. They have no 3 years experience as Jr. Resident in a medical college when appointed as Sr. Resident. Hence, not eligible.
- 5. OPD on day of assessment is 91.
- 6. Total number of patients in OPD has decreased from 38,363 to 36,635 during period of preceding 3 years.
- 7. IPD decreased from 7027 in year 2 to 5291 in year 3.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at St. John's Medical College, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

17. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (09/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (09/06/2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **10(Ten) to 14(Fourteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

18. Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **3(Three) to 5(Five)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

19. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at GSL Medical College & General Hospital, Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR

University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **3(Three) to 6(Six)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

20. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. R. Prabhavathi, Professor & HOD is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. B. Srinivasaulu Reddy, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 02.06.2016 after the cut off date; without any publication. Both his publications quoted are after his promotion.
- 3. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 4. Attendance at Speciality clinic like Pain clinic is low 2-3/day.
- 5. Equipment like Anaesthesia Gas Analyzers, BIS Monitors, MRI compatible Anaesthesia Machine are not available.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Narayana Medical College, Nellore, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

21. <u>Starting of MD (Community Medicine) course at NRI Institute of Medical Sciences, Visakhapatnam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (20/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Community Medicine) course at NRI Institute of Medical Sciences, Visakhapatnam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Assoc. Prof.: 1; (b) Statistician cum Lecturer: 1; (c) Epidemiologist -1 (d) Tutor: 1.
- 2. Dr. Subhajit Syam, Asst.Prof. was absent on the day of assessment.
- 3. There is no Statistician, no Epidemiologist and only one Lady Medical Officer against the requirement of 2.
- 4. Both RHTC & UHC are on lease. Period of lease agreement is not shown.
- 5. RHTC: Average monthly delivery is NIL. Cold Chain equipment is not available.
- 6. Equipment like Ophthalmoscope is not available.
- 7. In the column "Stipend paid by State Govt. to Residents", it is stated "NA" which is not feasible. The column "Stipend paid by Institute to Residents" is left blank implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend @ rates of State Govt. to Residents.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Community Medicine) course at NRI Institute of Medical Sciences, Visakhapatnam under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

# 22. <u>Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. V. Prashanth, Senior Resident does not have 3 y experience as Resident in a teaching hospital before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not eligible to hold the post.
  - 2. Promotion of Dr. K.V. Jagannatha Rao Naidu, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was Asst.Prof. for 4 year 10 months against the requirement of 5 years. He has no publications.
  - 3. OPD attendance on day of assessment is only 16. Average OPD attendance of randomly selected days is only 13.
  - 4. Equipment for Radiosurgery & Intraoperative Radiotherapy are not available.
  - 5. Accommodation for storage of Radioactive material is not available.
  - 6. Departmental Library has only 52 books.
  - 7. In the column "Stipend paid by State Govt. to Residents", it is stated "Not Applicable" which is not feasible. Also, in the column "Stipend paid by Institute to Residents", it is stated "Not applicable" implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend @ rates of State Govt. to Residents.
  - 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Radio-Therapy) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

23. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. T. Murali Venkateswar Rao is promoted as Professor on the basis of publications; however, 2 publications are in Online journals which cannot be considered; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. E. Srikanth, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 15.02.2017 after the cut off date. All the publications quoted are in Online Journals, which cannot be considered; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations.
- 3. Dr. V. Vijaya Kumar is promoted as Asso. Prof. on the basis of publications; however, 2 publications are in Online journals which cannot be considered; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 4. Shortage of Senior Residents There are 6 Units for which 6 Senior Residents are required. As only 5 are available, there is resultantly shortage of 1.
- 5. There is no Senior Resident in Unit VI.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

24. Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at NRI Medical College & General Hospital, Guntur, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **4(Four) to 6(Six)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

## 25. Starting of MD (Hospital Administration) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) for Starting of MD (Hospital Administration) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. K.Anjaiah, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.03.2017 after the cutoff date. He has no publication.
- 2. Promotion of Dr. Jaya Krishna, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.03.2017 after the cutoff date without any publication.
- 3. Experience details of faculty is not given in the faculty table without which their eligibility cannot be decided.
- 4. Data in table -6 of summary provides OPD and IPD figures of hospital administration and operations, which is not feasible. This department neither performs operations nor run OPD. Hence, the data is non-genuine.
- 5. NIL new books have been purchased in the Departmental library in last 3 years.
- 6. In the column of "Stipend paid by Institution to Residents", it is stated "State Government Institution" implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend to Residents @ rates of State Govt.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Hospital Administration) course at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad under Kaloji Narayana Rao University of Health Sciences, Warangal u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

# 26. Increase of seats in MS (Ophthalmology) course at PES Institute of Medical Sciences & Research, Kuppam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (09/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MS (Ophthalmology) course at PES Institute of Medical Sciences & Research, Kuppam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (09/06/2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MS (Ophthalmology) course at PES Institute of Medical Sciences & Research, Kuppam, Andhra Pradesh under Dr. NTR University of Health Sciences, Vijayawada u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **2(Two) to 3(Three)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

### 27. Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at RajaRajeswari Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19/06/2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at RajaRajeswari Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. The Institute is permitted for 250 seats for which 4 Units are required; however there are only 3 Units; resultantly there is deficiency of 1 Unit & 30 teaching beds.
- 2. Unitwise distribution of faculty & Residents is not provided.
- 3. For a college with 250 intake with 4 Units, total 12 faculty are required; however as only 11 are available, there is deficiency of faculty: (a) Asst. Prof.: 1.
- 4. Dr. Yathirajam S. Krishna is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 5. Dr. K.V. Rajnish is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 6. Dr. R. Karthik is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 7. Dr. V.B. Sangeeta is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 8. Dr. G. Sabana is promoted as Asso. Prof. with experience of 4 y as Asst. Prof. against requirement of 5 y; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 9. Dr. Nirmala S. Sahay is shown as "Senior Resident" in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Assistant Prof." from 02/09/2015 till date; no explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 10. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 11. In Table 8 of the summary clinical material data for last 3 years left blank.
- 12. MRD not fully computerized. ICD10 Classification is not being used.
- 13. Total number of patients in OPD has decreased from 1,70,671 to 1,17,245 during preceding 3 year period.
- 14. Data of average occupancy of PICU/NICU & occupancy on day of assessment of NICU are not provided.
- 15. Variety of patients needs to be better rather than routine cases of Dengue.
- 16. Thalassemia Day Care center is not available.
- 17. Dedicated services of Bronchoscopy, Endoscopy, HIV counselling & PFT for Paediatrics are not available.
- 18. Investigative facilities: Paediatirc endoscopy nil, Paediatric Bronchoscopy nil, PFT nil, ABG nil, Endoscopy –nil, Dialysis nil, Paeediatric Ventilation Nil, Thalassemia day care centre nil
- 19. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at RajaRajeswari Medical College & Hospital, Bangalore under Rajiv Gandhi University of Health Sciences, Karnataka u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

### 28. Starting of MS(Otorhinolaryngology) course at Chengalpattu Medical College, Chengalpattu, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Starting of MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Chengalpattu Medical College, Chengalpattu, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. J. Prabhakaran, Senior Resident does not have 3 y experience as Resident before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post. There is no other Senior Resident in the Unit.
- 2. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 57 %.
- 3. Speech Therapy service, Speech & Voice Analysis services are not available.
- 4. Equipment like OAE, 70° Sinus Endoscope are non-functional since last 1 month.
- 5. MRI workload for the whole hospital is only 06 on day of assessment.
- 6. The column "Stipend paid by State Govt. to Residents" is left blank which is not feasible. Also, in the column "Stipend paid by Institute to Residents", it is stated "NIL" implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend @ rates of State Govt. to Residents.
- 7. Academic parameter for the last 12 months Seminars -3, Group discussions -7 & journal clubs -7, which are inadequate.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MS (Otorhinolaryngology) course at Chengalpattu Medical College, Chengalpattu, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

## 29. <u>Starting of MD(Respiratory Medicine) course at Coimbatore Medical College, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Coimbatore Medical College, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

1. Dr. R. Vani & Dr. V. Arunchandar, both Senior Residents do not have 3 y experience as Resident before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post. There is no other Senior Resident in the Unit.

- 2. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 27.50 % i.e. 11/40 beds.
- 3. Departmental Library has only 52 books.
- 4. In the column "Stipend paid by Institute to Residents", it is stated "-" implying there is no commitment on part of Institute to pay stipend @ rates of State Govt. to Residents.
- 5. Total number of patients admitted last year IPD 83255, which means 277 admissions per day, which is not feasible. Data is non-genuine.
- 6. OPD and IPD in table -8, page 5 and table 18 at page 6 does not tally with each other. It only indicates that the data is non-genuine.
- 7. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Coimbatore Medical College, Coimbatore, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

30. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. P.A. Kamble is shown as "Asso. Prof." in the column of "Designation" in the faculty table; however in the column of "Experience", the typescript "Associate Professor" is struck off by hand and it is shown as "Assistant Professor" w.e.f. 20/03/2017 till date. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 2. Shortage of Senior Resident: 1.
- 3. Dr. S. Soni is shown as "Senior Resident" in the column of "Designation"; however in the column of "Experience", his 3<sup>rd</sup> year Residency is shown w.e.f. 08/08/2016 till date implying he has only 2 y experience as Resident against requirement of 3 y; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 4. Institute is permitted for 200 UG intake for which 900 beds are required; however in the column of "Total required beds" in § 6 of Summary, only 824 beds are shown' resultantly, there is deficit of 76 teaching beds.
- 5. There were only 12 Major Operations on day of assessment.
- 6. Although 12 Major Operations were claimed to have been performed on day of assessment, at time of taking round, NIL post-operative bed was occupied.
- 7. Average Occupancy of ICU/RICU is 50 %.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

31. Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Sunil Nikose is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however, in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; resultantly his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. Dr. U. Dudharkar is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 2; resultantly his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Gajanan Pisulkar, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. As per his Declaration Form he was promoted on 16.02.2015 and both his publications are after his promotion. However, in the faculty table he has promoted on 01.03.2017. This is not correct.
- 4. Dr. G.G. Singh, Sr. Resident, is not eligible. He has only 2 year 2 months experience as Jr. Resident when appointed as Sr. Resident. There is no other Sr. Resident in Unit-III.
- 5. Total number of patients admitted (IPD) last year 4538. Total number of major operations + minor operations (excluding daycare operations) was 7264. This is not feasible and the data is non-genuine.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS (Orthopaedics) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

32. <u>Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Dr. Pankaj Gharde is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; resultantly his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 2. There is no Senior Resident in Unit VI.

- 3. No other Specialty clinic except Neuro Surgery clinic, Cardio Vascular & Thoracic Surgery clinic & Breast clinic are run by the department.
- 4. There are 3 O.T.s with 4 tables implying 1 O.T. has 2 tables which is not as per norms.
- 5. Total number of patients admitted last year in 2016 (IPD) was 8445.

  Major + Minor operations (excluded daycare operations) was 11403 which is not feasible. The data is non-genuine.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

33. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Asst. Prof.: 3.
- 2. Units IV, VI have only 2 faculty each; hence they cannot be considered as PG Units.
- 3. Promotion of Dr. Sunil Kumar, Professor & HOD, is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 08.06.2014; after the cut off date. All his publication except one are after his promotion which cannot be considered.
- 4. Dr. S.D. Zanwar is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however, in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; resultantly his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 5. Dr. Anuj Verma is shown as "Assistant Professor" in the column of "Designation"; however in the column of "Experience", it is shown as "Associate Professor" w.e.f. 01/06/2017 till date; further although his date of promotion as Assoc. Prof. is after cut-off date, in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying there are NIL publications against requirement of 2. No explanation is given for this dichotomy.
- 6. Promotion of Dr. Sachin Agrawal, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted on 01.09.2015; after the cut off date. He has only one publication against the required 2.
- 7. Shortage of Senior Residents: 3. No Sr. Resident in Unit-II, IV & V.
- 8. Dr. Sandip Mohale & Dr. Ayub Pathan, both Sr. Resident are DNB from non-teaching hospital. They have no 3 years experience in a medical college/teaching hospital, when appointed as Sr. Resident. Hence, not eligible.
- 9. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 63 %.
- 10. Specialty clinics like Endocrine clinic, Haematology clinic, Neurology clinic are not run by the department.
- 11. Bronchoscopy is not done in the department.

- 12. Equipment like Holter, Bronchoscope are not available in the department.
- 13. MRI workload for the whole hospital on day of assessment is only 04.
- 14. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jawaharlal Nehru Medical College, Sawangi (Meghe), Wardha, Maharashtra under Datta Meghe Instt. of Medical Sciences (Deemed University), Nagpur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

# 34. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Dr. Gibi George, Senior Resident, does not have 3 years experience as Resident in a teaching hospital before appointment as Senior Resident; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 2. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 3. The patient load in the hospital needs to come up and improve. The case variety too needs improvement. The hospital is loaded with Dengue cases and these are not exam oriented training for the PG students.
- 4. The clinics in the hospital need to improve manifold. There are specialties without any faculty heading them for e g the Cardiology and Gastro clinics. The department needs its own endoscopes viz the bronchoscope and the gastro colonoscopies. The PFT monitoring of patients needs to be done at the departmental level without much dependence on the adult medical branches.
- 5. The MRD department needs to improve as well. It needs to be well transformed into a completely computerized depttt. As suggested the ICD 10 coding is being done very shoddily. This definitely needs improvement.
- 6. Date of first LOP to starting the MBBS course has not been provided.
- 7. Dialysis is not available in the department.
- 8. Thalassemia Day Care Center is not available.
- 9. Details of books purchased for Departmental Library in last 3 years are not provided.
- 10. The data of clinical materials of the entire hospital and 3 random days at page 6, table 6 left blank.
- 11. Table 8 on page 8, given the data of operations and deliveries in Paediatrics department. This is not feasible. Obviously the data is non-genuine.

  (All these indicate that the SAF is filled in most casual manner).
- 12. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

35. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19. ITEM NO. 35

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Shortage of Senior Resident: 1.
- 2. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 3. Data of Investigative workload of the department are not provided.
- 4. There is only 1 publication from the department during last 3 years.
- 5. Details of patients attending Specialty clinic like Haemophilia clinic are not provided.
- 6. Equipment like Colonoscope, Crash Cart are not available in the department.
- 7. Assessment day clinical material data of the entire hospital and 3 random days of medicine department has not been provided. (table 6 &7).
- 8. OPD of the entire hospital on assessment day shown as 170 only, which is grossly inadequate.
- 9. Total number of patients admitted last year 17730, which means 60 admission per day, it indicates that patients admitted stay only for 2 days and it means no serious patients are admitted. Either the data is non-genuine or patients with minor ailments not requiring admissions were admitted.
- 10. Table 8 page -9, shows surgeries and deliveries in the medicine department, which is not feasible and obviously the data is non-genuine.
- 11. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

36. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (16th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Faculty table not signed by any faculty members.
- 2. Dr. Kamal Soniya, Professor was absent on the day of assessment.
- 3. Dr. Ushal Shenoy, Professor, no date of promotion has been given only year has been given.

- 4. Total number of major operation last year 69675, which means 232 major operations per day, which is not feasible. Obviously the data is non-genuine.
- 5. There is no faculty table of Unit-I, without which the eligibility of the working faculty cannot be decided.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Jubilee Mission Medical College & Research Institute, Thrissur, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Note: Dean & HoD may be asked to give their clarification on the deficiency at Sr. No.4.

### 37. Increase of seats in MD (Pathology) course at Kilpauk Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Pathology) course at Kilpauk Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. Venu Anand, Assoc.Prof., is not as per regulations. He was promoted in January, 2015 after the cut off date without any publication.
- 2. Dr. N. Andal is promoted as Professor after cut-off date; however, in the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table, it is stated "No" implying NIL publications against requirement of 4; resultantly his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
  - Experience details of Dr. N.Andal do not tally in the faculty table and her Declaration Form.
- 3. Workload of USG guided FNAC was NIL on day of assessment.
- 4. Workload of TT investigation was NIL & of CT guided FNAC was only 09 in 2016.
- 5. Equipment like HPLC, Cytospin, Blood Gas Analyzer are not available.
- 6. Microphotography section is not available. Audiovisual aids are inadequate.
- 7. Pathological post-mortems are not performed.
- 8. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Pathology) course at Kilpauk Medical College, Chennai, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

### 38. <u>Starting of MD(Microbiology) course at Mohan Kumaramangalam Medical College, Salem, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Microbiology) course at Mohan Kumaramangalam Medical College, Salem, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Promotion of Dr. S. Rajesh, Professor, is not as per regulations. He was Assoc.Prof. for 3 years against the requirement of 4 years and promoted Professor on 01.11.2015 after the cut off date. All his publication quoted are after his promotion, which cannot be accepted.
- 2. Dr. N. Subathra, Asst.Prof. was absent on the day of assessment.
- 3. Molecular Microbiology is not available.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Microbiology) course at Mohan Kumaramangalam Medical College, Salem, Tamilnadu under The Tamilnadu Dr. MGR Medical University, Chennai u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

39. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from 17(Seventeen) to 24(Twenty Four) students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

40. Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Faculty table is not attached without which eligibility of the faculty cannot be decided.
- 2. Dr. Balaji Dattu Dhaigude, Dr. Iqbal Mohammad Ali and Dr. Virendra Athavale who were promoted as Professor after 21.07.2013 do not have required publications as per MCI guidelines.

- 3. Dr. S.V. Panchabhai considered as Professor doesn't have DGAFMS certificate of experience.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MS (General Surgery) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

41. Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y
Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil
University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the
academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Respiratory Medicine) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **3(Three) to 6(Six)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

42. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (14th June 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Padmashree Dr. D Y Patil Medical College, Pimpri, Pune, Maharashtra under Dr. D Y Patil University (Deemed), Pimpri, Pune u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **9(Nine) to 15(Fifteen)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

43. Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and decided to recommend to the Central Govt. to issue Letter of Permission for Increase of seats in MD (Anaesthesiology) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur u/s 10A of the I.M.C. Act, 1956 prospectively i.e. from the academic session 2018-2019 from **2(Two) to 4(Four)** students per year till the first batch admitted against the increased number appears in the final examination of the said course. The Teaching Institution be advised to apply for recognition of the qualification for the additional increased intake at the time of first available examination as per the provision of Section 11(2) of the IMC Act, 1956.

44. Starting of MD (Immunology Hematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Immunology Hematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Dr. S. Panicker, Professor & Dr. BinduKumari, Asso. Prof. both possess qualification in Pathology & not in IHBT. There is no evidence of special training in IHBT shown in the faculty table.
- 2. Dr. S. Panicker, Professor & HOD is appointed as Professor in IHBT straightaway from the post of Professor of Pathology without any experience in IHBT.
- 3. Dr. BinduKumari, Asso. Prof. possesses experience of only 1 y 3 m as Asst. Prof. of IHBT before promotion as Asso. Prof. against requirement of 4 y; further although her promotion is after cut-off date, the column of "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publication against requirement of 2; hence her promotion is not as per Regulations & she cannot be considered.
- 4. License for Apheresis is not available. There is no machine for single donor platelets.
- 5. Specialized investigative procedures like Antibody Identification, Isolation, etc. are not conducted.
- 6. Departmental Library has only 44 books.
- 7. Facilities in Departmental Research Laboratory are inadequate as detailed in the report.
- 8. Office space is inadequate.
- 9. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Immunology Hematology & Blood Transfusion) course at Pushpagiri Institute of Medical Sciences and Research Centre, Tiruvalla, Kerala under Kerala University of Health Sciences, Thrissur u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

45. Starting of MD (Anaesthesiolgy) course at Shri Vasant Rao Naik Govt.

Medical College, Yavatmal, Maharashtra under Maharashtra University of

Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year

2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Starting of MD (Anaesthesiolgy) course at Shri Vasant Rao Naik Govt. Medical College, Yavatmal, Maharashtra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Deficiency of faculty: (a) Asso. Prof.: 1; (b) Asst. Prof.: 2.
- 2. Dr. Santosh N. Bodkhe is promoted as Asso. Prof. after cut-off date; however the column "Benefit of publications" in the faculty table is left blank implying NIL publications against requirement of 2; hence his promotion is not as per Regulations & he cannot be considered.
- 3. Shortage of Junior Resident: 1.
- 4. Dr. Shital N. Mankar, Senior Resident has experience of only 1 y 6 m as Resident before appointment as Senior Resident against requirement of 3 y; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 5. Dr. Jitesh S. Kasture, Senior Resident has experience of only 2 y as Resident before appointment as Senior Resident against requirement of 3 y; hence not qualified to hold the post.
- 6. Pain Clinic is not conducted.
- 7. MRI is not available.
- 8. There were only 02 Minor Operations & NIL Daycare Operation on day of assessment.
- 9. Departmental Library has 76 books.
- 10. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Starting of MD (Anaesthesiolgy) course at Shri Vasant Rao Naik Govt. Medical College, Yavatmal, Maharashtra under Maharashtra University of Health Sciences, Nashik u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

46. <u>Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.</u>

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

- 1. Bed Occupancy at 10 a.m. on day of assessment is 20 %.
- 2. Occupancy in PICU was only 1 patient on day of assessment.
- 3. CT & MRI workload from the department on the day of assessment was nil.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (Paediatrics) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

## 47. Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

Read: the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu U/s 10(A) of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (19th June 2017) and noted the following:

- 1. Endoscopy, Bronchoscopy & Colonoscopy are not available.
- 2. Investigative facility like EMG is not available.
- 3. IPD from 2015 to 2016 is static. There is no increase in it which does not justify any increase in number of PG seats.
- 4. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee decided to recommend to the Central Government not to grant letter of permission for Increase of seats in MD (General Medicine) course at SRM Medical College Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram under SRM University, Chennai, Tamilnadu u/s 10A of the IMC Act, 1956 for the academic year 2018-19.

### 48. Approval of the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 27/05/2017 – regarding.

Read: the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 27/05/2017.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 27/05/2017 items wise and decided:

### 1. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at ACPM Medical College, Dhule for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

## 2. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Maharashtra Institute of Medical Education & Research, Talegaon, Pune for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 3. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at L.N. Medical College and Research Centre, Bhopal Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 4. Admission of PG Broad specialities students at NetajiSubash Chandra Bose Medical College, Jabalpur for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 5. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Christian Medical College, Ludhiana Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 6. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Pondicherry Institute of Medical Sciences & Research, Pondicherry Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-Committee has deferred the item.

Noted.

### 7. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Sikkim Manipal Institute of Medical Sciences, Gangtok for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 8. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Deccan College of Medical Sciences, Hyderabad Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

### 9. Admission of PG students (Super-speciality) at Christian Medical College, Vellore Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 10. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Christian Medical College, Vellore Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 11. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at PSG Institute of Medical Sciences, Coimbatore for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 12. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at SRM Medical College, Hospital & Research Centre, Kancheepuram Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 13. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Shri Ram MurtiSmarak Institute of Medical Sciences, Bareilly Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 14. Admission of PG students (Broad-Speciality) at Hind Institute of Medical Sciences, Barabanki Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 15. Admission of PG students (Broad-Speciality) at Teerthankar Mahaveer Medical College, Moradabad Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

### 16. Admission of PG students Broad-speciality) at S N Medical College, Agra Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that he explanation by the college authority may be accepted as regards the admission MD – Radio Diagnosis/Radiology MD/MS – Obstetrics &Gynaecology. Further records of PG section and MCI website be updated and for fixing intake capacity for future the process of renewal of recognition be intimated. Approved.

### 17. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at School of Medical Sciences & Research, Greater Noida for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 18. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Rama Medical College and Hospital, Kanpur for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 19. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at GSVM Medical College,</u> Kanpur Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 20. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Command Hosptial, Kolkata for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 21. Regarding PG Counseling 2017 particularly relating to Christian Medical College & Christian Dental College, Ludhiana.

It is stated that the Council has received a letter from Professor (Dr.) Raj Bahadur, Baba Farid University of Health Sciences, Faridkot, Punjab dated: 26/04/2017 received in Council office on 04/05/2017 regarding "PG counseling 2017 particularly relating to Christian Medical College & Christian Dental College, Ludhiana" states as under:

This matter has already been settled by the Hon'ble Supreme Court and hence no action is required. The PG Monitoring Sub-Committee has stated that no further action is required and this decision of the PG Monitoring Sub-Committee is approved.

# 22. Admission of PG students at Dr. VasantraoPawar Med. Col. Hosp. & Research Centre, Nasik (Prev. NDMVP Samaj Medical College) for the Academic Year 2014-15 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 23. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Shri Krishna Medical College, Muzzafarpur for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that a direct communication may be made to the DME be intimated has even after repeated reminders the institution is not furnishing the details of admission made for academic year 2016-17. Copy of the letter be endorsed to the Dean as well as the member nominated by State Govt. in the Council. With request to get the information expedited.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

### 24. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Nanak Dev University, Amritsar for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Attention of college authorities be invited towards the observations of PG Committee (meting dated 26.06.2015) reproduced below:

"The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the Council Assessor's Report (October, 2014) and compliance dated 31/03/2015 submitted by the college authorities and decided to recommend not to recognize MD(Sports Medicine) qualification for 01 seat granted by Guru Nanak Dev University in respect of students being trained at Guru Nanak Dev University, Amritsar because of the following facts:-

- 1. Designated Professor Dr. J.S. Sindhu is away on deputation to Govt. of India; resultantly the department is headed by Dr. Shweta Shenoy, Asso. Prof., which is not as per the Regulations.
- 2. There are no Senior Residents.
- 3. Both Asso. Prof. are non-medical teachers having Ph.D. qualification; resultantly there is no medical teacher in the department.
- 4. One of the hospital with, which attachment is claimed is Fortis Escorts Hospital, Amritsar, which is a non-teaching hospital.
- 5. All 3 External Examiners were from the same state, which is not as per Regulations and cannot be accepted.
- 6. Other deficiencies as pointed out in the Assessment Report.

The department does not fulfill any of requirements.

In view of the above, the Postgraduate Medical Education Committee is of the considered opinion that the failure on the part of your Institution to timely rectify the deficiencies show that the standard of Postgraduate Medical Education is not maintained in your Institute and therefore decided to recommend to the Central Government to stop admissions in MD (Sports Medicine) course with immediate effect."

The institute neither has a hospital nor any eligible faculty. They were advised to give compliance to the deficiencies within 2 weeks otherwise admissions done if any will be illegal and not according to regulations and they were asked to stop admissions. The institute never submitted any compliance on rectification of the deficiencies pointed out. If they have still made any admissions, they are illegal and not according to regulations and amounts to playing with the career of students.

The Committee further decided that discharge notice be issued by the Monitoring Cell, if they have admitted any student after 26.6.2015 directing the Institute to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to appear before the PG Committee with the clarification in this regard.

### 25. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at RajanBabu T B Institute, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Committee has observed that a communication will be made the institute stating that a per MCI record it is running Diploma in Tuberculosis & Chest Diseases and MD Tuberculosis Respiratory Diseases/Pulmonary Medicine the institute may be asked whether they are still admitting student for both these course if so the details of student admitted last 3 year details will be intimated.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

#### 26. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Central Health Education Bureau, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that A communication will be made the institute stating that a per MCI record it is running Diploma in Health Education the institute may be asked whether they are still admitting student for both these course if so the details of student admitted last 3 year details will be intimated.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

# 27. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at MotiLal Nehru Medical College, Allahabad for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.</u>

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that a direct communication may be made to the DME U.P Govt. be intimated has even after repeated reminders the institution is not furnishing the details of admission made for academic year 2016-17. Copy of the letter be endorsed to the dean as well as the member nominated by State Govt. in the Council. With request to get the information expedited.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to

submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

#### 28. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Institute of Liver and Biliary Sciences, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that Direct a communication may be made to the Director of Health Services, Delhi Govt. be intimated has even after repeated reminders the institution is not furnishing the details of admission made for academic year 2016-17. Copy of the letter be endorsed to the Dean as well as the member nominated by State Govt. in the Council. With request to get the information expedited.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

# 29. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Institute of Nuclear Medicine & Allied Sciences, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that a direct communication may be made to the Director of Health Services, Delhi Govt. be intimated has even after repeated reminders the institution is not furnishing the details of admission made for academic year 2016-17. Copy of the letter be endorsed to the Dean as well as the member nominated by State Govt. in the Council. With request to get the information expedited.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

#### 30. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Medical College, Thiruvananthapuram for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.</u>

The college has not submitted the list of the student till date. Monitoring Subcommittee has observed that Direct a communication may be made to the DME be intimated has even after repeated reminders the institution is not furnishing the details of admission made for academic year 2016-17. Copy of the letter be endorsed to the dean as well as the member nominated by State Govt. in the Council. With request to get the information expedited.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of all students admitted. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of the Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI. Further, Dean be asked to remain present at ensuing meeting of PG Committee.

# 31. Admission of PG students at Lady Harding Medical College, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2015-16 - Regarding.

With regard to excess admissions, Monitoring Sub-Committee has observed as under:

- 1. PG section should place on record the details by which intake capacity have been fix in the subject in which admission are shown to be excess.
- 2. A communication to will be made to Director Medical Education, Ministry of Health, Nirman Bhawan with copy to member of the Council representing Delhi University with the request to expedite the information from the LHMC.

Approved.

# 32. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Dr. BR Ambedkar Medical College, Banglore Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 33. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at Coimbatore Medical College, Coimbatore Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 34. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at Madurai Medical College, Madurai Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 35. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at Amla Institute of Medical Sciences, Thrissur Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 36. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at NetajiSubash Chandra Bose Medical College, Jabalpur for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 37. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-Speciality) at Institute of Postgraduate</u> Medical Education & Research, Kolkata Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 38. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Regional Institute of Ophthalmology Previously know as Nehru Institute of Ophthalmology, Sitapur Year 2016-17- Regarding.</u>

With regard to matter of payment of stipend to Residents, Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that a communication may be made to Chief Secretary Govt. of UP informing that as per MCI regulation stipend at par with that being paid by State Govt. is required to be mandatorily paid to PG students. The RIO Sitapur is unable do so because of lack of necessary finically grant from the State Govt. in these circumstances in case stipend is not paid to the admitted students at par with that being paid by the State Govt. for its institute than the MCI would be constrained to issue direction for stoppage of admissions. A copy of this communication endorsed to Principal Secretary of Medical Education.

Approved.

# 39. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Osmania Medical College, Hyderabad for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 40. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at MP Shah Medical College, Jamnagar 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted. It has also recommended that assessment for Renewal of Recognition of DGO course be held at the earliest to fix the intake.

Approved.

#### 41. <u>Admission of PG students at Pramukhswami Medical College, Karmsad for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.</u>

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 49. <u>Approval of the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee</u> meeting held on 13/06/2017 – regarding.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the minutes of the Postgraduate Monitoring Sub-Committee meeting held on 13/06/2017 items wise and decided:

# 1. Admission of PG student at B.J. Medical College Ahmedabad for the Academic year 2014-15- regarding.

Matter pertains to excess admissions in 2014-2015. Earlier it was decided to discharge the candidates lowest in merit and on excess seat in MD (T.B. & Respiratory Diseases) & DA and submit compliance. No response has been received so far from the college authority.

Presently The Committee noted the earlier decision and reiterated earlier decision of PG Committee in this regard a reminder may again be sent to DME, Health Secretary of the State and Dean B.J. Medical College, Ahmadabad and the proof of delivery report of the letter be kept in the file.

Approved.

### 2. Admisison of PG students at Institute of Postgraduate Medical Education & Research, Kolkata for the Academic year 2014-15 Regarding.

Earlier it was decided to direct the Institute not to admit any students in following courses from the next academic session i.e. 2016-17 as the admission for the academic year 2015-16 has already been over and submit compliance.

S.No	Course	No. of seat sanctioned	Admitted student
1	DDVL	0	3
2	DA	0	1
3	DMRD	0	7

Presently Monitoring Sub-Committee has decided that action if any may be taken in accordance with the decision dated of 6.11.2015 of PG Committee an communicated to the college on 26.11.2015 vide Council letter bearing No. MCI-23(1)(MC)/2014/151400.

Approved.

# 3. Admission of PG students at Command Hospital, Chandimandir for the Academic Year 2015-16 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has found explanation of the Institute is in order & be accepted.

Approved.

# 4. Admission of PG students at Dr. Vaishampayan Memorial Medical College, Solapur for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 5. <u>Admission of PG students at Rangaraya Medical College, Kakinada for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.</u>

The Committee noted that 14 student were admitted below 50% marks as a general candidate in different subjects the clarification was sought by the Council vide letters dated 13/7/2015, & subsequent reminders dated 4/4/2016 & 5/2/2017 however has evoked no response. Therefore a communication may be made to the Dean/Principal of the college with copy endorsed to State Govt., DME affiliating University Dr. NTRUH with the request to intimate the

appropriate admission authority/College/DME to sent the reply within 15 days, falling which a Council's shall be constrained discharge notice. The communication should be made immediately as there has been considerable delay on the part of college authority in responding.

Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute which has not evoked any response. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of the above 14 candidates whose marks are < 50 %. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, Affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

#### 6. Admisison of PG students at Bhabha Atomic Research Centre, Mumbai for the Academic year 2015-16- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 7. Admission of PG students at Sardar Patel Medical College, Bikaner for the Academic Year 2015-16 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has decided that no further action is required as the impugned admission is already cancelled.

Approved.

# 8. Admission of PG students at PanditDeendayalUpadhyay Medical College, Rajkot for the Academic Year 2015-16 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 9. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Government Medical College, Kota 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 10. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Government Medical College, Kottayam, for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 11. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at Padmashree Dr. D. Y. Patil</u> <u>Medical College, Navi Mumbai for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.</u>

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 12. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at SDM Medical College, Dharwad for the Academic Year 2016-17 - Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 13. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Amla Institute of Medical Sciences, Thrissur for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 14. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at VardhmanMahavir Medical College &Safdarjung Hospital, New Delhi for the Academic Year 2016-17-Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 15. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at S. Nijalingappa Medical College & HSK Hospital & Research Centre, Bagalkot Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 16. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at North Bengal Medical College, Darjeeling for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 17. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at BankuraSammilani Medical</u> College, Bankura for the Academic Year 2016-17– Regarding.

With regard to admission with < 50 % marks, Monitoring Sub-committee has decided that the detail of admission of Dr. Anjan Kumar Sedai admitted under all India quota be obtained from Medical Counselling Committee of the DGHS, Govt. of India.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute which has not evoked any response. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of Dr. Anjan K. Sedai whose marks are < 50 %. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, Affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

### 18. Admission of PG students (Super-Speciality) at Mahatma Gandhi Medical College & Hospital, Jaipur for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 19. Admission of PG students (Broad-speciality) at MGM Medical College, Indore for the Academic Year 2016-17 – Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has deferred the item.

Noted.

# 20. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at School of Tropical Medicine, Kolkata for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.

With regard to admission of Dr. Sumalya Sen & Dr. SabnamAra Begum on basis of interview, Monitoring Sub-committee has decided that the college authority may be asked to provide the details of common entrance examination on the basis of which these candidates have been admitted. They may also be informed that the admission on the basis of interview is not permissible as per Council regulations.

Not Approved. Enough opportunities have been given to the Institute which has not evoked any response. Issue Discharge Notice in respect of Dr. SumalyaSen& Dr. SabnamAra Begum who are admitted on basis of interview. Institute be directed to submit compliance within 2 weeks. Copy of Discharge Notice be sent to Secretary (ME), DME, Affiliating University, State Medical Council & representative of the State on MCI.

# 21. Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at Padmashree Dr. D. Y. Patil Medical College, NaviMumbai for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

# 22. <u>Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at KMCT Medical College, Kozhikode, Calicut for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.</u>

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 23. Admission of PG students (Broad-Specialty) at Government Medical College, Jammu for the Academic Year2016-17- Regarding.

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

### 24. <u>Admission of PG students (Super-Specialty) at PSG Institute of Medical Sciences, Coimbatore for the Academic Year 2016-17- Regarding.</u>

Monitoring Sub-committee has observed that explanation of the Institute be accepted.

Approved.

#### 50. Recognition of the courses being offered by College of Physicians and Surgeon, Mumbai – reg.

Read: the letter dated 12/06/2017 received from the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi forwarding therewith the minutes of the discussion of the meeting held on 12/04/2017 under the Chairmanship of the Secretary (HFW) with regard to recognition of the courses of College of Physicians and Surgeons, Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the letter dated 12/06/2017 received from the Under Secretary to the Govt. of India, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi forwarding therewith the minutes of the discussion of the meeting held on 12/04/2017 under the Chairmanship of the Secretary (HFW) with regard to recognition of the courses of College of Physicians and Surgeons, Mumbai.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee noted that since the college has already been de-recognized vide notification dated 02.12.2009 issued by the Central Government and there are several court cases pending in this regard, the Committee decided that a legal opinion be obtained from the Council Advocate and the office is directed to place the matter before the PG Committee after receiving the legal opinion.

# 51. Examination of the subject – All India Institute of Hygiene & Public Health, Kolkata – excess payment of stipend (para 8.3) based on the C&AG Report No. 11 of 2016 – reg.

Read: the matter with regard to examination of the subject at All India Institute of Hygiene & Public Health, Kolkata on excess payment of stipend (para 8.3) based on the C&AG Report No. 11 of 2016 along with the letter dated 20/06/2017 received from the Director (Training), Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to examination of the subject at All India Institute of Hygiene & Public Health, Kolkata on excess payment of stipend (para 8.3) based on the C&AG Report No. 11 of 2016 along with the letter dated 20/06/2017 received from the Director (Training), Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, New Delhi and noted that the matter regarding recognition of these Diplomas (Diploma in Industrial Health and Diploma in Maternity and Child Welfare) have been brought before the Postgraduate Committee a number of times. It was observed that the Institute neither follows the TEQ Regulations in appointment of faculty nor observes teacher student ratio. This is evident from the reply dated 01.01.2015 received from the Dean of Institute that 13 out of 36 faculty members are non medical and they are admitting 164 students per year against total of 19 faculty members. The matter was also referred to a subcommittee which opined that alternative diplomas included in the schedule of courses are available and the institute should apply for them following the procedure prescribed in Section 10A of the Indian Medical Council Act. The Postgraduate Committee is of the considered opinion that these diplomas should not be re-included in the schedule of recognized courses. However, this is a Central Government institution and PG Committee has already referred the matter to Central Government vide letter No.PG/55(22)/2015-Med./137093, dated 23.09.2015 for final decision in the matter.

# 52. Amendments in the qualifying criteria and list of enclosures in COA mentioned in application form for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate courses – reg.

Read: the matter with regard to Amendments in the qualifying criteria and list of enclosures in COA mentioned in application form for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate courses.

The Postgraduate Medical Education Committee considered the matter with regard to amendments in "The Opening of a New or Higher Course of Study or Training (including Post-graduate Course of Study or Training) and Increase of Admission Capacity in any Course of Study or Training (including a Postgraduate Course of Study or Training) Regulations, 2000" with regard to qualifying criteria and format of Consent of Affiliation for starting/ increase of seats in Postgraduate Courses and approved as under:-

Existing provisions	Proposed amendment	Justification
CONSENT OF	PART -1	There is a single
AFFILIATION	No. :	format of
FORM -3	Name of University :	Consent of
No	Dated :	Affiliation for
University of	Place :	starting/increase
Place		of seats and
Dated	CONSENT OF AFFILIATION	there is no
CONSENT OF	[for Starting of Course]	mention
AFFILIATION		whether COA is
	The [Name of the	for starting or
On the basis of the report of	University] has decided in principle to	increase of seats.
the Local Inquiry Committee,	affiliate for the Starting of Diploma in -	There is no
the University of	/MD - /MS - /DM- /M.Ch *	mention about
has agreed in principle, to	at (Name of Medical College with address)	academic year
affiliate the proposed course	with an annual	and number of
of	intake capacity of (specify	seats applied for.
to be opened at	number of seats), subject to the grant of	The time period
	permission under section 10(A) of the	for which a CoA
by the (Name of the college)	Indian Medical Council Act, 1956 (102 of	can be
subject to grant of permission	1956) by the Government of India, Ministry	considered as
by the Government of India,	of Health and Family Welfare, New Delhi.	valid is also not
Ministry of Health and	1935	provided.
Family Welfare, New Delhi	This Consent of Affiliation shall be	Therefore, there
under/Section 10(A) of the	valid for processing of application for three	is a need to be
Indian Medical Council Act,	academic years from the date of issue.	changed the
1956 (102 of 1956)."		format.
	(Signature of Competent Authority of the	
	University)	
	Note:	
	(1) Strike-off the name of course	
	whichever is not applicable and	
	include the name of speciality	
	Broad/ Super-Speciality for which	
	application is being made as per the	
	Schedule – Specialities/ Subjects in	
	which Postgraduate Degree and	
	Diploma can be awarded by the	
	Indian Universities of the	
	Postgraduate Medical Education	
	Regulations, 2000. Any deviation	
	from prescribed nomenclature shall	
	not be permissible.	
	ποι νο φοιτιποσινίο.	
		<u> </u>

(2) The Consent of Affiliation should be	
in above format and no other format	
would be acceptable.	
(3) Separate Consent of Affiliation	
should be issued for each course.	
(4) The applications for starting of a	
course are made one year in	
advance. The applications that are	
made between 15th March to 7th	
April, of the year of application to	
Central Govt. shall be considered for	
starting of the course for the coming	
academic year.	

The Committee also recommended for the amendments in the said regulations with justification which is as under:-

Existing Regulations	Proposed amendment	Justification
Qualifying criteria for starting	(1) This requirement be deleted.	NEET is applicable
5. (1) Selection of students for post-	(,	and assessment is
graduate courses shall be made		carried out in case
strictly on the basis of academic		the institute fulfils
merit and as laid down in the Post-		the eligibility
graduate Medical Education		criteria.
Regulations;		
Enclosures to be attached with the		
Application Form.		
1. Attested copy of the Essentiality	This requirement be deleted.	The requirement
Certificate issued by the respective	·	has already been
State Government/Union Territory		deleted from the
Administration on the prescribed		qualifying criteria
proforma.	OUNC	vide notification
	Carroll	dated 03.11.2010
2. Attested copy of the Consent of	The word 'attested copy' should be	
Affiliation issued by a recognised	deleted.	
University.	(B) Z	
3. Authorization letter addressed to	This requirement be deleted.	The required bank
the Bankers of the Applicant		guarantee is
authorizing the Central	7 1023 4	submitted by the
Government/Medical Council of	1835	private institutes
India to make independent enquiries		and undertaking is
regarding the financial track record		submitted by the
of the medical college/institution.		Govt. Institutes
		when LOI is issued
		by the Central
		Govt. Hence, there
		is no relevance of
		the authorization
		letter.
4. Attested copy of the letter from	The words 'attested by any	Self attested by the
Medical Council of India approving	Gazetted officer' be substituted by	Dean/
recognition of the	the Dean/Principal/Director of the	Principal/Director
college/institution, if already	institute.	of the institute is
approved by Medical Council of		sufficient.
India. Note: All the copies shall be		
attested by any gazetted officer.		
For increase of seats		
CONSENT OF AFFILIATION	PART -2	There is a single
FORM -3	17111-2	format of Consent
C-IVINO1		TOTTIAL OF COUSEIIL

NIa	NIa	of Affiliation for
No	No. :	of Affiliation for starting/increase
University of Place	Name of University: Dated :	of seats and there
Dated		is no mention
CONSENT OF AFFILIATION	Place :	whether COA is
CONSERT OF AFFICIATION	CONSENT OF AFFILIATION	for starting or
On the basis of the report of the	[for Increase of seats in]	increase of seats.
Local Inquiry Committee, the	To mercase or seats my	There is no
University of has agreed	The[Name	mention about
in principle, to affiliate the proposed	of the University] has decided in	academic year and
course of	principle to affiliate for the	number of seats
to be opened at	Increase of seat in Diploma in -	applied for. The
by the	/MD - /MS - /DM- /M.Ch *	time period for
(Name of the college) subject to	at (Name of Medical	which a CoA can
grant of permission by the	College with address)	be considered as
Government of India, Ministry of	with annual intake capacity from	valid is also not
Health and Family Welfare, New	to (specify	provided.
Delhi under/Section 10(A) of the	number of seats), subject to the	Therefore, there is
Indian Medical Council Act, 1956	grant of permission under section	a need to be
(102 of 1956)."	10A of the Indian Medical Council	changed the
	Act, 1956 (102 of 1956) by the	format.
	Government of India, Ministry of	
	Health and Family Welfare, New	
	Delhi.	
	This Consent of Affiliation	
	shall be valid for processing of	
6/19	application for three academic	
	years from the date of issue.	
No.	(Signature of Competent Authority	
	of the University)	
	Note:	
	(1) Strike-off the name of course	
	whichever is not applicable	
	and include the name of	
	speciality Broad/ Super- Speciality for which	
	application is being made as	
	per the Schedule -	
	Specialities/ Subjects in	(0)
	which Postgraduate Degree	
	and Diploma can be awarded	
	by the Indian Universities of	
	the Postgraduate Medical	
	Education Regulations, 2000.	
	Any deviation from	
	prescribed nomenclature	
	shall not be permissible.	
	(2) The Consent of Affiliation should be in above format	
	and no other format would	
	be acceptable.	
	(3) Separate Consent of	
	Affiliation should be issued	
	for each course.	
	(4) The applications for starting	
	of a course are made one	
	year in advance. The	
	applications that are made	
	between 15th March to 7th	
	April, of the year of	
	application to Central Govt.	

	shall be considered for starting of the course for the coming academic year.	
1. Attested copy of the Essentiality Certificate issued by the respective State Government/Union Territory Administration on the prescribed proforma.	This requirement be deleted.	This requirement has already been deleted from the qualifying criteria vide notification dated 03.11.2010
2. Authorization letter addressed to the Bankers of the Applicant authorizing the Central Government/Medical Council of India to make independent enquiries regarding the financial track record of the applicant	This requirement be deleted	The required bank guarantee is submitted by the private institutes and undertaking is submitted by the Govt. Institutes in case LOI is issued by the Central Govt. Hence, there is no relevance of the authorization letter.
3. Attested copy of the letter from Medical Council of India approving recognition of the college/institution, if any. Note: All the copies shall be attested by any gazetted officer.	The words 'attested by any Gazetted officer' be substituted by the Dean/Principal/ Director of the institute.	Self attested by the Dean/ Principal/Director of the institute is sufficient.

The Standard Assessment Format for DM(Paediatrics and Neonatal Anaesthesia) has been approved in the PG Committee.

Meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the Chair.

(Dr. Reena Nayyar) Secretary I/c

New Delhi, dated the 30th June, 2017

#### **APPROVED**

(Dr. Siri Bhagwan Siwach) Chairman